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T he people, places, and events of Trinityôs history will be brought to life in 

September and October by the church Historical Society. As much as can 

be told in six Lay Academy sessions will fill the 6:30 p.m. hour on Wednesdays 

from September 13 through October 18. 

   Members of the year-old 

preservation/research 

group have given you a 

sampling of their research, 

writing, and love of every-

thing about church history 

in the Societyôs new Cross-

roads newsletter in April 

and in this July issue. They 

and a few other church 

members will present hour-

long discussions during the 

class entitled ñMore Than 

Bricks and Mortar.ò  

   An overview of the churchôs history will introduce the series on Sept. 13 

with a discussion called ñFrom Frontier Faith to a Heart for the Cityò by Linda 

Yates, chair of the Historical Society. On Sept. 20, Bob Jones, historian of 

the HS, with 40 years of professional experience in working with stained glass 

windows, and a recent retiree of the Bureau of Historic Preservation, will pre-

sent ñStained Glass Windows Tell the Sacred Story.ò  

On Sept. 27, the Rev. Dr. Wayne Wiatt, senior pastor, will follow up 

with ñOur Chancel Windows: Trinitarian Nature of Our Belief in the Triune 

Deity.ò   
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The Methodist Church Bell 

Those among us who had not noticed the preparations going on at the 

Methodist Church for the past week or two, were surprised on Sabbath 

day to hear a new bell peal out on the morning air, its tones somewhat 

resembling the bell of the Episcopal Church. It was a new thing for the 

Methodists, but the members hastened to obey its gladsome call to Divine 

worship, while the retiring minister must have listened to its swelling 

notes with mixed feelings of pleasure and regret. 

Some months ago several of the ladies of the Methodist Church, head-

ed by Miss Mary Damon and Mrs. Shipp (the latter now being of Co-

lumbus,) set to work in their own way to raise funds to secure a bell for 

their Church. It was a most praiseworthy undertaking and after patient 

labor they have succeeded in it, and let the praise be theirs. 

The bell was obtained through Dr. Lewis of a manufacturing firm in 

Cincinnati and cost $170.  It weighs one thousand pounds and measures 

four feet across the mouth, and is provided with springs which throw the 

clapper from side to side and facilitate ringing or tolling.  The bell was 

hoisted to the belfry and placed in position on Thursday last. This latter 

work with the building of the belfry cost $150, and there is a small 

amount due on it which the members and friends of the Church should at 

once make up. 

In the early times of our cityôs history the Methodists worshipped in a 

small log house where the Presbyterian parsonage now is, and afterwards 

in the lower room of the then Masonic Lodge, situated on the lot where 

Mrs. Tatumôs residence stands. In 1839 the building of the main body of 

the present Church was commenced, but it was not finished until 1845.  

Then a short pair of steps led right up into the vestibule from the street.  

The building was not then considered strong enough to support a bell, 

and it was not until 1858 that the walls were strengthened with cornices 

and iron rods run through the building, the roof extended in front with 

brick pillar supports as at present and the porch added. As the building 

was now considered secure, it is very likely that a bell would have been 

procured but for the war coming on.  Since the war there has been from 

year to year more or less talk among members concerning a bell for the 

Church, but the matter assumed no definite shape until this year the la-

dies took hold of it, and now we see and hear the bell, and a fine one it is, 

too. 

 Bell Brings a Peal for Methodism 

By Lynn McLarty 

The Weekly Floridian  
December 14, 1875 
Florida State Archives  
microfilm collection 
Tallahassee, FL  

W hile on a quest in the Florida State Archives for another historical matter, I found this article by 

chance on microfilm in the December 14, 1875, edition 

of The Weekly Floridian. Stumbling upon it piqued my 

interest to associate it to the photos I knew were in our  

 

Trinity Church archives. This 1840 church building was 

razed in the early 1890s and was replaced by the brick 

church structure (built in 1893), which preceded our 

present sanctuary of 1964.   

Below is the text of the article (author unknown): 

(More information about the bell continues on the following page.) 
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 The  dates of the life of Edna O. Gramling (August 26, 1874- 

April 9, 1968), author of the article (shown right), give credibility 

to her remembering the razing of the 1840 church. Edna had been 

a Trinity member since 1887.  

I have recently excluded our bellôs being in Monticello at First 

Methodist, Christ Episcopal, and First Presbyterian.  The first two 

bells were of the same dimension as our bell was described in the 

1875 article. Each one had the churchôs name in the casting and 

dated 1889 and 1887 respectively. Also, each had Henry McShane 

Foundry, Baltimore, MD. The Presbyterian bell was twenty-eight 

and one-half inches at the mouth and the casting stated the Jones 

& Company Foundry was in Troy, NY. More investigation must be 

done to determine where our Trinity bell is now located. If anyone 

has any suggestions, please talk with me. 

The two photos below show the 1840 church building before 

and after the placement of the bell.  

Pre-1875   
 

Note there is no steeple and the steps rise directly to the 
front door.   

1875  
 

Note the alteration to the front, extending 
the porch and adding the steeple to accom-
modate the new bell.  Also note in both pho-
tos the two trees  in the front of the Church 
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I n 1893, the same year Trinity was building its sec-ond sanctuary, Erastus Clark, a watchmaker and 

jeweler with a store on Monroe Street, bought a house 

at 507 North Calhoun Street. Built in 1840 by George 

Proctor, a free Black, for Territorial Treasurer Hen-

ry Rutgers, the house and property occupied more 

than 20 acres from Calhoun to Meridian Streets. The 

grounds contained a smokehouse, an outdoor kitchen, 

a large carriage house, and pastureland to support a 

small dairy of milk cows. 

Janie and Minnie 

Clark lived there with two daughters, Janie and 

Minnie, their mother having died when they were 

young. When Clark died, he bequeathed the house and 

property to his daughters, both spinsters in their 50s. 

Hired help milked the cows and took care of other 

chores while the sisters operated the jewelry store and 

a bookstore. 

Lewin Spear 

One Christmas in 1914, the hired man failed to 

show up to milk the cows, and the Clark sisters called 

on the sheriff for help. Those were the days of hobos 

and tramps who hopped on freight trains and rode 

from town to town. The sheriff had just arrested a 

young man who hopped off a train a few days earlier. 

Rather than keeping Lewin Spear in jail, he sent him 

to assist the ladies. They discovered he was a likable 

and well-educated person from a Maryland family and  

invited him to live in their carriage house if he would 

work for them. 

When that arrangement proved too cold, Spear 

moved into the house and began to help with chores 

and with the downtown  stores. Then, to make things 

look proper, the sisters decided that one of them 

should marry him. Miss Janie felt that Miss Minnie 

was nearer Spearôs age and should be the one, but 

Minnie said her older sister should be the one because 

Minnie might have more chances to marry later. The 

sisters sat on the gravestones of their parents in Old 

City Cemetery, and the matter was settled.  Minnie 

Clark became Mrs. Lewin Spear. 

The young husband became highly respected in the 

community, took part in civic affairs and joined the 

volunteer fire department. One November night in 

1930, a cotton mill caught fire. Spear volunteered to 

take a hose inside the mill, and when he began to 

spray water, an explosion destroyed the building and 

himself. The whole town grieved over the man they 

had grown to respect. The sisters bravely carried on. 

The Spear Estate 

Miss Janie died in 1939 at age 70, and Miss Minnie 

lived alone in the house on Calhoun Street until her 

death in 1952. She bequeathed the house to the Salva-

tion Army, which sold it to the Tallahassee Garden 

Club in 1954 for $30,000. The bulk of Minnie Clark 

Spearôs estate, at that time nearly a half million dol-

lars, was to be invested for the benefit of five down-

town churches that existed at the timeðPresbyterian, 

Methodist, Baptist, Episcopal, and Roman Catholic. 

Each year since then, Trinity United Methodist 

Church has received an equal share of Miss Minnieôs 

generous bequest. Depending on the rise and fall of 

the market, the amount has varied from $11,000 to 

$19,000 during the last 10 years, or an average of 

about $12,000. 

Information Resources 

Collins, L. (1987, Jan. 5). ñTallahassee Was Enriched by Some of Its 

Different Residents,ò St. Petersburg Times, op.ed. page. Reprinted 

in Purvis, H. (2017, April). ñThe Tallahassee Garden Center,ò His-

toric Rutgers, Tallahassee Garden Club Newsletter, pp. 11-12. 

Rhodes, B. (1994). At First: The Presbyterian Church in Tallahas-

see, Florida, 1828-1938. Tallahassee, FL: The Presbyterian Church, 

pp. 320-323. 

Trinity United Methodist Church Financial Records. 

 

By Linda Yates 

 A Gift That Keeps On Giving ī The Spear Estate 

Minnie Clark Spear continued to live in the historic Rutgers 
house on Calhoun Street after the rest of her family died.  She 
bequeathed it to the Salvation Army, which sold it to the 
Tallahassee Garden Club in 1954. The bulk of her estate was left 
to downtown churches, including Trinity.  (Yates photo) 
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T he Oral History Spotlights project is just one of the ways Trinityôs Historical Society is recording the 

evolution of our church. We do this so that future gen-

erations may know and understand the growth and 

development of their church. To achieve this goal, we 

continue to record the experiences of our members 

who have done so much to shape our church as we 

know it today.  

Previous spotlights featured the Sunday School pro-

gram, the experiences of a prior pastor, and the choir. 

The most recent spotlight shines on the music program 

at Trinity as told by the director, Mark Repasky.  

Mark discussed his nearly 20 years of experience in 

directing the music program at Trinity which includes 

14 different groups ranging in age from two years old 

in the preschool music class to 90 years old in the 

Heavenly Chimes group. It definitely takes a special 

person to handle such a wide range of ages and abili-

ties. The various music groups are open to anyone who 

wants to join, and there is something for anyone who 

wants to worship through the medium of music. In 

addition to providing beautiful music for Sunday ser-

vice at Trinity, this ministry also performs in a variety 

of community programs and celebrations.  

  One of the challenges of the music program in re-

cent years was the hiring of an organist. Mark relates 

how our treasure of an organist, Viktor Billa, was 

discovered in Ukraine. After many hours and much 

negotiation with various groups, Viktor joined the mu-

sic program at Trinity, and what a blessing he and his 

wife, Yuliia, have been.  

The next two Oral History Spotlights will be com-

pleted this summer. First, we turn our spotlight on the 

memories of Trinity by Associate Pastor Barbara 

Hynes as she prepares to retire at the end of August. 

Then, the spotlight shines on Kitty Ball, who will talk 

about the role of Trinityôs United Methodist Womenôs 

ministry over the last 60 years.  

Our ultimate goal is to record personal experiences 

from as far back as possible and into the present. The 

Spotlights are filmed at Trinity at the convenience of 

the speaker. Brett Ingram edits the videos of the 

Spotlights, and as soon as they are finalized, Pam 

Crosby and Rex Adams publish them on the Histori-

cal Societyôs webpage.  

You are invited to be a part of this exciting project. 

Please contact Princess Palmer at princessannpalm-

er@yahoo.com or any member of the Historical Socie-

ty.  

 

Oral History Spotlights: Mark Repasky 

By Princess Palmer 

Lynn McLarty, Membership Archivist, who has 

digitized Trinity membership records and completed 

several significant research projects, will discuss  

ñMissional Outreach of Early Trinity: The Boulevard 

Churchò on Oct. 4. 

On Oct. 11, two long-time members of Trinityôs 

choir, Warren May and Nancy Kerce, will discuss 

the old-time hymns that brought Trinity from that old-

time religion to a congregation renowned for its wor-

ship through music. Their discussion is entitled ñCome 

Before His Presence with Singing.ò  

On Oct. 18 the class series will end by remembering 

some of the saints. ñPeople and Clergy of Trinity: Sev-

eral Stories of Service and Faithò will be told by Carrol 

Dadisman, former newspaper publisher who assisted 

with editing Trinityôs history book in 1999 and wrote a 

history of the University of Georgia. 

A Lay Academy brochure will be published in early 

September with a registration form for this and other 

classes being offered.  

A special issue of the Crossroads newsletter 

(January 2018) will highlight features of the series.  

 

(continued from ñLay Academy Series,ò pg. 1) 

mailto:princessannpalmer@yahoo.com
mailto:princessannpalmer@yahoo.com


    

 
 

 

E very Sunday morning as Trinity members come to worship, they walk by a large concrete stone set into the lower right corner of the building. Em-

bossed with a cross, the stone is more than decoration. Behind its fa­ade is a 

copper box sheltering objects of value for future generations who will come 

here to worship perhaps hundreds of years from now. 

Church officials laid the cornerstone 53 years ago on February 2, 1964, during the final months of construction 

of Trinityôs new sanctuary. It was an important milestone for Trinity then in its 140th year as Tallahasseeôs first 

religious organization. Already it had built and worshipped in two other sanctuaries all on the same street corner, 

one in 1840 and the second in 1893. As the years went by and early building materials deteriorated, a growing con-

gregation demolished the old structures for new ones. 

As plans developed for the third and current sanctuary in 1962, Trinityôs beloved pastor, the Rev. Dr. Glenn 

James, died suddenly and the Rev. Dr. Melton Ware was named to replace him. He and the building commit-

tee continued with the inspiration they had shared to have a beauti-

ful new building in which to worship by May 1964. 

   Florida Bishop James W. Henley was principal speaker at the 

ceremony to lay the cornerstone. The Rev. Dr. Ware, Building Com-

mittee Chairman Payne H. Midyette, and Finance Committee 

Chairman Frank D. Moor put the box in place.   

   Its contents were carefully chosen, even including a gavel made of 

wood from a column that had supported the slave gallery of the 

1840 church and central floor of the 1893 building. It also preserves 

a brief history of Trinity, a list of the members, list of memorial 

windows of the 1893 church, copies of newsletters in which were 

printed the budget for that year, the music program, the Sunday 

school, staff, bulletins of the last service in the old church, officers 

of Womenôs Society of Christian Service, photos of building com-

mittee, pictures of all three buildings, the old church altar, the pas-

tors and building committee.  

   The Florida Conference Journal, the Methodist Discipline, official 

board minutes designating the Chapel as a memorial to the Rev. Dr. 

James, and a map of the city of Tallahassee, and one set of proof 

coins are also included. Duplicates of some of these items are kept in 

Trinityôs Heritage Room, but if there is ever a fire, tornado or other 

destructive event, the cornerstone preserves a little bit of history. 

  

Trinityôs Cornerstone Shelters Valued  Memories 

с 

By Linda Yates  

R honda Work, who recently was named Vice Chair of Trinityôs Preservation of History Committee, also  

serves as its liaison to the Trinity Historical Society. She came to Tallahassee in 1975 and worked at the De-

partment of Education as a speech pathologist until her retirement. At Trinity she sings in the choir, volunteers 

with HEO, and creates the CDs of the churchôs worship services.  

As a community volunteer, she was named one of this year's Senior Center Silver Stars awardees. She is inter-

ested in history and research. 

Historical Society Welcomes New History Preservation Vice Chair 

R.C. Holmes, Tallahassee District Supt., dedicates  

contents of the cornerstone box placed in outside 
wall of the new Trinity sanctuary on Feb. 2, 1964. 
Looking on, from left, were Payne Midyette, 
Chairman of the Building Committee; Melton 
Ware, Senior Pastor; and several generations of 
church members. (Photo Trinity Archives) 
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Clergy Chronicles: The Short Life of the Rev. Jasper K. Grover, Part I 

N ot much can be found in our Trinity archives about the Rev. Jasper K. Glover, who served 

as Trinityôs pastor in 1860.  

His short life spanned only 33 years, beginning in 

Twiggs County, GA, on June 29, 1829. At the age of 20, 

he was a practicing attorney in Baker County, GA. 

In January 1853, he began serving as the first settled 

pastor of the Manatee Methodist Episcopal Church, 

South in Manatee, FL. At that time, he was newly mar-

ried to Lavonia Branch. Lavonia was the daughter of  

Franklin Branch, prestigious physician, proprietor of 

an apothecary shop, large landowner, and postmaster 

of Manatee.   

In fall 1853, the young Methodist pastor established 

a private school for boys and girls in the Masonic Lodge 

building in close-by Tampa.  

One of his students, James McKay, Jr., a son of 

Scottish immigrants, wrote that his teacher was an in-

tense defender of the Know Nothing Party, which had 

recently been organized to oppose the Democratic Par-

ty. The Know Nothing Party promoted a nativist policy 

and advocated for a legal solution to preserve slavery. 

McKay remembered hearing the Rev. Glover at a public 

meeting deliver a stinging speech at the courthouse op-

posing Alfonso DeLaunay, who defended the Demo-

cratic Party (Delaunay would soon serve as mayor of 

Tampa).  

McKay noted that most citizens were persuaded by 

DeLaunayôs argument rather than that of the Rev. Glov-

er. Throughout the years of 1855-1856, there was in-

tense political conflict between the Democrats and the 

Know Nothings in Hillsborough County.  Jasper was 

chosen as one of the county delegates of the Party when 

it met at the courthouse in Tampa on July 24, 1856. But 

the Party would soon decrease in popularity and would 

not remain a strong force in the state by election time, 

1857.  

McKay wrote that because the Rev. Glover support-

ed so forcefully the Know Nothing Party while de-

nouncing the Democratic Party, McKay was removed 

from the Rev. Gloverôs school, and his parents enrolled 

him in another school. It is not clear why one event 

caused the other, although one might offer a theory 

based on the contentious political climate targeting  

immigrants at that time in Tampa. This young student 

of the Rev. Glover would grow up to become a mayor of 

Tampa and also a state senator.  

Unfortunately for the young schoolmaster and pas-

tor, a private girls school was soon established in Tam-

pa, and the competition proved too much for Jasper to 

maintain his own school, given that he was left with 

only boys to teach. He soon left school-teaching. 

Part 2 of this story will describe the Rev. Gloverôs 

life and work as pastor of Trinity and later presiding 

elder of the Tallahassee District of the Florida Confer-

ence. 
                          Information Sources 

                

Andrew, J. O., & Smith., P. P. [President and Secretary of Florida 

Conference]. (1870). ñFlorida Conference [held in 1862],ò in Bish-

ops of the ME Church, South (Eds.), Minutes of the Annual Con-

ferences of the Methodist Episcopal Church, South for the Year 

1862. Nashville, TN: Southern Methodist Publishing House, p. 

409. Retrieved from Internet Archive: https://archive.org/

stream/27838123.1862.emory.edu#page/n43/mode/2up 

ñDescription of Doctor Franklin Branch.ò (n.d.) [Description ac-

companying photograph]. Retrieved from Manatee County Public 

Library System: http://cdm16681.contentdm.oclc.org/cdm/ref/

collection/p16681coll1/id/10759 

Frazier, N. G. (1993, Nov.). ñEducation: From Its Beginnings in 

the Territory to Present,ò The Sunland Tribune, 19, pp. 35-52. 

Retrieved from Special & Digital Collections, Tampa Library, 

University of South Florida: http://digital.lib.usf.edu 

SFS0024297/00019/pdf 

 

McKay, Jr., J. (1991, Nov.). ñReminiscences Of Capt. James 
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4ÈÅ ΧήίΩ ÂÕÉÌÄÉÎÇ 

A unt Memory Adams was probably the last Black person to remain 

a member of Trinity following the Civil War. Respectful titles such as 

ñMiss,ò or ñMrs.ò were not given to Black women by White people at that 

time in the South, but those women who had drawn strong regard were 

often referred to as ñAunt.ò 

Rubie Butterworth, in the 1999 history of Trinity United Methodist 

Church, related interesting details remembered about the unusual woman 

called ñAunt Memory.ò She had been a children's nurse, a house cleaner, a 

carpet layer, and a believer in witchcraft who "carried a hearth broom to 

sweep the tracks at street corners to keep away evil spirits" (p. 37). Appar-

ently she felt safe with the people of Trinity and continued to appear for 

services on Sunday mornings. 

The story about Aunt Memory that resonates with me is that of her 

ambition to go to the World's Fair in Chicago in 1893 when she was 70 

years old. She earned the money to go by selling postcards of herself. All 

the details of how she got there and what she did while there have not 

been remembered and recorded. However, one significant quote has sur-

vived and is worth repeating. When asked by her hostess in Chicago why 

she came to the fair, she replied, "I came to see how man have used the 

wisdom God have given him" (p. 38). 

We are not told whether Aunt Memory liked what she saw at the 

World's Fair or whether she came home to Tallahassee believing that man 

was using his wisdom in accord with God's intent, but for her sake I hope 

she did. 
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Aunt Memory Adams: Devoted Member and Worldôs Fair Visitor 

By Dot Binger  

Historical Society officers meet monthly, most often on the first Wednesday. We welcome Historical Society members and all others inter-

ested in church history to join our rowdy group. While we try to stay focused on the meeting agenda, we often lapse into telling stories and 

tales of history we have learned from our research. Contact us to learn about our next meeting. 
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